CALL TO ORDER
I

Il.

M.

(AVA

REPORTS

VI.

VII.
VIII.
IX.

X.
XI.
XII.

AGENDA

Whitewater Landmarks Commission
Thursday August 2, 2012 - 6 PM
City Manager's Conference Room
312 Whitewater Street, Whitewater, Wl 53190

Call to Order and roll call

Approval of agenda and possible rearrangement

Approval of minutes of April 4, 2012, special meeting; April 18, 2012; June 7, 2012; special
meeting, July 28, 2012.

Set date and time of next meeting - Thursday, September 6, 2012 - 6:00 P.M Annual training session
Hear Citizen Comments: No formal Landmarks Commission Action will be taken during this meeting although issues
raised may become a part of a future agenda.  Participants are allotted a three minute speaking period. Specific items listed
on the agenda may not be discussed at this time; however citizens are invited to speak to those specific issues at the time the
Commission discusses that particular item.

Report from the Friends of the Mounds - FOTEM (Helmick)

A. Burial Sites Board Preservation Meeting, June 8, 2012 - Madison

B. Parks and Rec Board meeting - June 14 and July 2, 2012

C.. Presentation on June 12, 2012 to Wisconsin Retired Educators Association

D. June 23rd Mounds Tour on native plant communities by Renae Prell-Mitchell (Christ)
E. FOTEM Meeting - Saturday, July 7, 2012 - 8 AM Sweet Spot

F. FOTEM Newsletters- June, 2012, July 2012

Update on James and Ella Rockefeller House (Christ)

Update on restoration of Whitewater Passenger Depot (Marshall)

Update on Walking Tour Brochure (Wendt)

Update on Birge Fountain (Loomer)

Update on Local Landmarks/Main Street Historic District Brochures (Loomer, Marshall & Christ)
Update on Whitewater Effigy Mounds Preserve Preservation and Maintenance Plan

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Xl
XIV.
XV.
XVI.
XVII.
NEW BUSINESS
XVIII.
XIX.
XX.

Petition for rescission of landmark designation for Nelson Salisbury House - 404 W. North (Christ)
Status of City Council Process on Fence Encroachments at the Effigy Mounds Preserve (Christ)
Status of FREE LIBRARY history panel for White Memorial Library

Status of Title 17 Amendment - Certificate of Approval for public/private property (COA) - (Christ)
Implementing 17.08.040 of Title 17 re city-owned historically significant personal property.

Nomination of Whitewater Passenger Depot to the National Register of Historic Places
Corrections to Architectural and Historical Survey of Whitewater, Wl 53190
Request for Local Landmark Designation - 302 South Prince

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

XXI.

XXII.
ADJOURNMENT

XXIII.

Future designations of city-owned properties as local landmarks
Plaques for Whitewater sites on the National Register of Historic Places

Call to Adjourn



SPECIAL REPORT — Maples Mound Group, (WL-82), Whitewater, Wisconsin.

At the last Burial Board meeting two members of the public presented the Board
and Society staff with a map of this mound group (Map 1). Society staff had not
seen the map before the meeting. Since the meeting, staff has had a chance to
review the map, check Society records, and visit the site again.

The Society was asked to flag the mounds in this preserve so that they could be
mapped. Staff did flag the mounds and at that time someone with a hand-held
GPS recorded the flag locations. The map (Map 1) however, does not accurately
reflect the shape of the mounds as flagged and records two elevated features as
mounds that were flagged as unusual raised features, but not identified as
mounds by Wisconsin Historical Society staff. The oval-shaped elevated feature
near the southwest corner of the parcel was noted on the original C. E. Brown
map with a dotted line (Map 2). The oval feature and an irregular linear feature
along the south fence line were also mapped with dashed lines during the 1989
survey (Map 3).

With the new map inhand (Map 1), staff revisited the mound group and carefully
reexamined both the oval feature and the irregular feature along the south fence
line. Neither appears to Society staff to be mounds nor the remnants of mounds.
The south fence line feature actually extends all the way to the southeast corner
of the lot and we believe it represents soil accumulated along an old fence line.
The oval rise seems to Society staff to be a raised area that staff has frequently
seen associated with large trees.

Staff also looked at the reported intaglio marked near the northeast corner of the
parcel. In our opinion, the shallow, narrow, linear ditch and the broad diffuse
elevated feature located east of the ditch represent the edge of an old field. The
ditch represents the actual plow scar and the elevated feature is soil that
accumulated along the old fence line. Other discontinuous field edges are visible
south of this location.

On April 11, 2012, Society staff monitored the removal of the fence posts that ran
down the eastern side of Mound #11(Maps 2 and 3). The fence did not run down
“the center of the mound” as stated at the last Burial Board meeting. The posts
were easily wiggled free and pulled out with very little or no soil attached. The
holes were generally 15.0-20.0 inches deep and 8.0 inches in diameter. The soil
profiles exposed in four of the holes were closely examined. No evidence of a
previous disturbance was noted. The holes were immediately backfilled with soil
that came from the adjacent private property. No artifacts were observed in the
examination of the postholes, or in the soil used to backfill the holes. The fence
was moved east away from the mound and installed outside of the 5.0 foot
buffer.

Prepared by John H. Broihahn

Wisconsin Historical Society Staff Report - Burial Board Meeting, June 2012 1
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MAP 1. Yellow hatched areas represent mounds or elevated features and the
solid blue represents a leaf disposal area.

Wisconsin Historical Society Staff Report - Burial Board Meeting, June 2012 2
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MAP 3

Figure 2. 1989 Map of the Maples Mound Group.
WHITEWATER EFFIGY MOUNDS PARK

Map Based upon Field Measurements July,1989.
Prepared by Larry Johns and Frank Stekel

With the Assistance of:

Prof. James Scherz of UW-Madison  Ralph Lehman

Anthony Zarinnia Shirley Stekel

Sharon Stekel Wilbur Sundt

Don Manley Sandra Stekel
% ]
! This werk was partially supported with a UW-Whitewater state research grant. g

Presented to the City of Whitewater by Frank Stekel, UW-Whitewater, April 1990
( i W
— TrRUE EAST
/ MAP SCALE

Map compiled by
L. Johns and F. Stekel

Based upon July 1989
Field Measurements

Wisconsin Historical Society Staff Report - Burial Board Meeting, June 2012
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WHITEWATER EFFIGY MOUNDS PRESERVE

FOTEM MEMBERS SPEAK TO RETIRED EDUCATORS

On Tuesday, June 12, Richard Helmick and Carol Christ gave a PowerPoint presentation on the Whitewater Effigy
Mounds Preserve to the Walworth County Area Retired Educators Association at a luncheon meeting at Ridgestone
Terrace in Elkhorn. About 35 members listened intently as Richard and Carol gave a history of the mounds group as
well as current efforts to preserve and educate this local treasure. The group that represents southeastern Wisconsin
has over 200 members and is part of the Wisconsin Retired Educators Association, a state-wide organization. Many of
those present were unaware of the presence of a mounds group in Whitewater, were eager to visit, and added their
names to our newsletter list.

JUNE 23R° TOUR FOCUSES ON NATIVE SPECIES

On Saturday, June 23rd, Renae Prell-Mitchell led 17 “tourists” around and through the preserve. A cultural ecologist,
Renae, gave a unigue perspective to a place that most of us think of mainly in terms of mowing, controlling weeds and
maintaining trails. As she walked us through areas pointing out plants and trees, we
began to see this area the way its first residents saw it -- as a place to not only bury and
honor their loved ones, but to rest there, using native plants to sustain themselves. All
mounds groups were constructed near a source of water, and a few brave souls tackled
undergrowth in the marshy area to see a remnant of the original spring. It was amazing to
see how many different plants, both native and invasive there are at WEMP. Many were
in bloom and it seems likely that another tour in the fall would give us a totally different
perspective. [See photos on page 2 of this newsletter].

The best way to control garlic mustard is to: FOTEM MEETING
a. Pull it out of the soil.

b. Cut the flower stalk at ground level just as flowering begins.
¢. Burn in the spring and fall.

d. Use an herbicide during the dormant season.

SATURDAY, JULY 7

8:30 AM. The SweetSpot

May Quiz answer - When was garlic mustard first recorded in the United States?
a. 1868 Db. 1926 c. 1982 d. 2001
Garlic mustard was first recorded in the United States about 1868, from Long Island, New York. It was likely

introduced by settlers for food or medicinal purposes.
Newsletter editor: Carol Christ ezreaderd6@charter.net




Renae welcoming visitors.

Newsletter editor: Carol Christ

ezreader46@charter.net
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S 2. Wisconsin Department of Transportation

= = www.dotwisconsin.gov
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'/;// § Scott Walker Mark Gottlieb, P.E, Division of Transportation

"?'l/m“m\\\':\\ Govemor Secretary System Development

4802 Sheboygan Ave, Rm 451
P O Box 7965

Madison, W1 53707-7965
Phone: 608-266-0099
Fax: 608-264-6667

June 28, 2012 E-Mail: bees.cr@dot.wi.gov

Kimberly Cook

Division of Historic Preservation and Public History
Wisconsin Historical Society

816 State Street

Madison, WI 53706-1488

WisDOT Project ID: 3390-02-00 SHSW# 00-0094/WL
Janesville Road (STH 59)

Intersection of STH 59 and Janesville Road (Old STH 89)
Whitewater, Walworth County

Memorandum of Agreement Stipulations

In accordance with Stipulation 3 of the executed Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) for the above-referenced
project, WisDOT completed an archaeological survey of borrow, batch plants, and waste sites. This is
documented in the enclosed letier and supplemental paperwork. Stipulation 1, the good faith effort to relocate the
National Register-eligible James and Ella Rockefeller House, was completed in June 2011. Stipulation 2,
photographic documentation, was completed in May 2011.

All MOA stipulations have now been fulfilled and WisDOT considers this MOA complete. If you have any
questions, please contact me at (608) 267-6693 or jason|.kennedyi@dot.wi.gov.

Sincerely,

Jason Kennedy
Environmental Analysis & Review Specialist

Enclosure

cc! tan Chidister, FHWA
Julie Jenks, WisDOT SE Region
Scott Lee, WisDOT SE Region
Will Anderson, CO Files



@\ﬁci"% Division of Transporation System Development

Southeast Regional Office
141 N.W. Barstow Street
P.O. Box 798

OF TR Waukesha, Wl 53187-0798

Scott Walker, Governor
Mark Gottlieb, P.E., Secretary
Internat: www.dol wisconsin.gov

Telephone: {262} 548-5303
Facsimile (FAX): (262} 548-5662

E-Mail:

June 18, 2012

Mr. James Becker

Wisconsin Department of Transportation
Bureau of Technical Services
Environmental Services Section

4802 Sheboygan Avenus, Room 451
Madison, Wi 53707-7695

Subject: 3390-02-00
Janesville Road {(STH 59)

Intersection of 3TH 59 and Janesville Road (Old STH 89)

STH 58
Walworth County

Mir. Becker,

| previously sent a letter stating that we had completed stipulation 1 and stipulation 2 in compliance with
the executed Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)} for the Janesville Road {STH 58) improvement project.
(Attached) ! am now sending paperwork to show that stipulation 3 is aiso complete.

There were three commercial waste/borrow sites used for this project.  They were all approved by Lynn
Cloud 9-8-11. There were also 3 possible select waste/borrow sites that were approved by Brian Nicholis

for use by the project. None of the 3 select waste/orrow sites were used.

Please let me know if you need any additional inforrnation to complete the MOA for this project. H you

concur please ferward this information to SHPQ as required by the MOA.

Julie Jenks
Project Manager
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List 1: Local Landmarks in the City of Whitewater

Address

445 West Center Street
122 North Esterly Avenue
133 North Fremont Street

204 West Main Street
328 West Main Street
402 West Main Street
402 West Main Street
429 West Main Street
507 West Main Street
522 West Main Street
604 West Main Street
622 West Main Street
708 West Main Street
127 Newcomb Street

404 West North Street

‘145 South Prairie Street

Name

Smith-Allen House
Esterly Carriage House
F. ]. Starin Mansion .
Walworth Hotel
Hamilton House

White Memorial Library
Birge Fountain

. Newton M, Littlejohn House

1. ]. Starin House — “Green Shutters”

Sanger Marsh House

G. W. Esterly House

Engebretsen-Dorr House

Bassett.House

Lyman Wight Octagon House

Nelson Salisbury House

First United Methodist Church of Whitewater

301 Whitewater Street
Indian Mound Parkway

~ Whitewater Passenger Depot

Whitewater Effigy Mounds Preserve

List 2: Properties Listed in the National Register of Historic Places

Address

213 West Center Street
Indian Mound Parkway

West Main Strest

West Main Street

Name ",

Whitewater Post Office :

Maples Mound Group (Whitewater Effigy Mounds Park)

East Wing of Old Main (Hyer Hall, University of Wisconsin-
Whitewater)

Halverson Log Cabin (Grounds, University of Wisconsin-
Whitewater)

MAIN STREET HISTORIC DISTRICT

Address

430 West Center Street

445 West Cenier Street

116 South Church Street
120 South Church Street
123 South Church Street
129-33 South Church Street
139 South Church Street
150 South Church Street
122 North Esterly Street

304 West Main Street
310 West Main Street
314 West Main Street
328 West Main Sireet

Name

L. J. Stephens House
Smith-Allen House

St. John’s Lutheran Church
St. John’s Rectory

Thrift Shop

Residence

Residence

St. Luke’s Episcopal Church
Esterly Carriage House
Simon Law Office

Bowers House

Rufus Chaney House
Hamilton House

11
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Burn seasons in Wisconsin generally occur each spring (April — May) and falt (late Oclober -
December). The season of burn can affect growth and development of many amphibian, insect
and plant species. For example, a spring burn can stimulate late flowering forbs, while a fall
burn may open ground for early spring sunlight and encourage growth of cool season grasses
such as Junegrass. Some species take 2 to 3 years to flower and set seed after a burn, some
species wilt flower within months following a burn. It is important then o stagger frequencies
and seasons for the benefit of the entire plant and animal community.,

An example burning regime for Effigy Mounds Preserve is provided in Table 1 below. Due to
the small nature of the park, the entire preserve could be burned during one event or could be
divided into smaller units and burned separately. At this time, it is likely most cost efficient and
effective to burn the entire preserve at once.

It is understood that a land management company who specializes in prescribed burmning would
carry out the burn(s) and provide the necessary equipment and permits.

Table 1. Example bumning schedule for Effigy Mounds Preserve.

2011 2012 | 2013 [ 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Spring™ -- Fall - Fall -- - Spring
burm burn burn burn

_Fall: Early November through mid-December.
Spring: Early April through early May.

Remove {urf cover on each mound and restore with a short-stature, nafive seed mix

The Parks and Recreation Board agreed to consider this option at a later date. The turf
cover will remain on the mounds with hand mowing of the mounds to be completed by
volunteers. (8-1-11)

The Parks and Recreation Board has amended the plan to begin the process of removing
the turf cover and to restore with a short-stature, native seed mix. City staff will identify
two mounds to convert in this manner in 2012, (7-2.12)

The effigy mounds are currently vegetated with Kenfucky bluegrass and mainfained by periodic
mowing. \While this vegetative cover allows for good visibility of the mounds, it is maintenance
intensive and invites pedestrian traffic, causing compaction. In addition, compaction has
occurred from mowing and brushcutfing activities. To convey & more cultural and natural
appearance of the mounds, we are recommending that the mounds be re-vegetated with a short
stature, nafive seed mix. The species that are recommended below are native to this area of
Wisconsin. After the seed mix becomes established, the shorter height of this mix compared fo
the taller vegetation in the surrounding oak savanna will help to delineate each mound. We are
also recommending that the base of each mound be mowed to help delineate the shapes for
visitors.

To remove the existing turf over the mounds, treat with a glyphosate-based herbicide (e.g.,
Roundup™) per label requirements. The turfgrass will die off after 1 — 2 herbicide treatments
{two freatmenis is ideal). When the turfgrass has died off, burn the surface of each mound fo
get rid of the dead thalch. After the mounds have been removed of turf and bare soil is
exposed, hand-sow the native seed mix per the instructions in Table 2.

Whitewater Effigy Mounds Preserve Preservation and Maintenance Pian 13
Jupe 3, 2011
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NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 10024-0018
{January 1992)
Wisconsin Werd Processing Format (Approved 1/92)

United States Department of Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Registration Form

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in How e Complete the National
Register of Historic Places Registration Form (National Register Bulletin 16A). Complete cach item by marking "x" in the appropriate box or by
entering the information requested. If an item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A™ for "not applicable.,” For fuactions,
architeclural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories [rom the instructions. Place additional entries and
narrative items on continuation sheets (NPS Form 10-900A), Use a typewriter, werd processor, of coniputer, to complete al! items.

1. Name of Property

historic name Whitewater Passenger Depot

other names/site nnmber Whitewater Depot Museum

2. Location

street & number 301 West Whitewater Street N/A not for publication

city or town Whitewater N/A vicinity
state  Wisconsin code W1 county Walworth code 127  zipcode 53190

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, I hereby certify that this X nomination
request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. [n my opinion, the property
X meets _does not meet the National Register criteria. I recommend that this property be considered significant _ nationally
statewide _locally, {_ See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signature of certifying official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property x_meets _ does not meet the National Register criteria.
(_ See continuation sheet for additional comments.}

Signature of commenting official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

13




Whitewater Passenger Depot

| Walworth County Wisconsin

Name of Property

County and State

4. National Park Service Certification

I hereby certify that the property is;
__ontered in the National Register,
See continuation shect.

__ dotermined eligible for the
National Register.

See continuation sheet.
___ determined not eligible for the

National Register,

See continuation sheet.
_ removed from the Kational
Register,

___other, {explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action

5. Classification

Ownership of Property

(check as many boxes as {Check only one box)
as apply)
private X building{s)

X public-local district
public-State structure
public-Federal site

object

Category of Property

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources

in the count)
contributing noncontributing
1 buildings
sites
structures
1 objects
2 total

Name of related multiple property listing:

(Enter "N/A" if property not part of a multiple property

listing,.
N/A

Number of contributing resources
is previously listed in the National Register

0

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
{Enter categories from instructions}
TRANSPORTATION/rail-related/train depot

Current Funetions
(Enter categories from instructions)
RECREATION AND CULTURE/museum

7. Description

Architectural Classification
{Enter categories from instructions)
LATE VICTORIAN/Gothic/High Victorian Gothic

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)
Foundation Limestone

walls Brick
roof Asphalt
other Wood

Narrative Description

{Describe the historic and current condition of the property on cne or more continuation sheets.)




Whitewater Passenger Depot

Walworth County

Wisconsin

Name ol Property

County and State

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

qualifying the property for the National Register listing.)

% A TProperty is associated with events that have

made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of our history.

Property is associated with the lives
of persons significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction

or represents the work of a master, or pessesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant
and distinguishable entity whose components
lack individual distinction.

Property has yieided, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
{Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

_ A owned by a religious institution or
used for religious purposes.

B removed frem its original location.

_C abirthplace or grave.

_D acemetery.

_E arcconstructed building, object, or
structure,

_F acommemorative property.

_ G less than 50 vears of age or achieved

significance within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance
{Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets,)

ARCHITECTURE

TRANSPORTATION

Period of Significance

1890-1952

Significant Datcs

1890

Significant Person
(Complete if Criterion B is marked)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation

N/A

Architect/Builder

I. T. W. Jennings




Whitewater Passenger Depot Walworth County Wisconsin

Name of Property County and State

9. Major Bibliographic References

(Cite the beoks, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets,)

Previous Documentation on File (National Park Service): Primary location of additional data:
. preliminary determination of individual X State Historic Preservation Office
listing {36 CFR &7) has been requested _ Other State Agency
_ previously listed in the National _ Federal Agency
Register _ Local government
. previously determined eligible by . University
the National Register Other
. designated a National Historic Name of repository:
landmark

recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #
tecorded by Historic American Engineering Record #

10. Geegraphical Data

Acreage of Property Less than one

UTM References (Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet,)

I 16 358378 4743582 3

Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing
2 4

Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing

[ ] See Continuation Sheet

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet)

Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet)

11. Form Prepared By

. hame/title Carol Lohry Cartwright
organization Whitewater Historical Society date May 21, 2012
street & number W7646 Hackett Rd. : telephone 262-473-6820
city or town Whitewater state  WI zip code 53150
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Whitewater Passenger Depot Walwarth County Wisconsin
Name of Property County and State

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form;
Continuation Sheets

Maps A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location,
A sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional Items {Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional itcms)

Property Owner

Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO,)

name/title City of Whitewater

erganization date May 21,2012
street & number 312 W. Whitewater St. telephone  262-473-0500
¢ity or town Whitewater state Wl zip code 53190

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Histotic
Places to nominate properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings.
Response to this request is required to obtain a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16
U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reperting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including
time for reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form, Direct comments
regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service,
P.0. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects,
{1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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Form 10-900-a
{Rev. 8-86)

Wisconsin Word Processing Format {Approved 1,92}

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Whitewater Passenger Depot
Section _7 Page 1 Whitewater, Walworth County, W1

DESCRIPTION
Sife

The Whitewater Passenger Depot is located at the cast end of the historic downtown commercial
district in Whitewater, a small city in southeastern Wisconsin. It sits along the east side of Whitewater
Street at the intersection with Fremont Street and is bounded on the cast side by the railroad tracks and
on the south side by a terrace that sits between the railroad tracks and a large parking lot. To the north
of the building, across Fremont Street, there is a large park that sits along an old mill pond, currently
known as Cravath Lake. Known as Lakefront Park, it consists largely of open lawn spaces with
parking areas, and is landscaped with typical urban park amcnities.

The topography of the site around the building, itself, is flat. Lawn spaces punctuated with a few
medium-sized trees surround the building on two sides. The largest lawn is in front of the building in
the long setback between the building and Whitewater Strcet. The second, and smaller, lawn space
sits between the building and the parking lot to the south. Along the north side of the building, which
is much closer to Fremont Street, there is a wide terrace between the building and the street. The east
side of the bulding has no lawn space due to its proximity to the tracks.

A wide concrete pad runs around the entire building and two concrete walkways run between this pad
and the parking lot and the sidewalk along Whitewater Street. The concrete pad gradually rises along
* the south clevation to the currently-used entrance to make it handicapped accessible. On the east side
of the building, along the tracks, the concrete pad runs right up to the gravel-covered railroad right-of-
way. Originally, this pad was wider and served passengers accessing trains; however it was shortened
in the 1990s when the Department of Transportation widened the gravel right-of-way between the
depot and the tracks.

Also on the site is a cast-iron horse fountain that sits in the walkway near the Whitewater Street
sidewalk. It is a large bowl type fountain sitting on a pedestal. It was moved to this site from near the

depot some time in the twentieth century and has sat as a decorative object in front of the depot for
many decades. It is a contributing resource to the site.

Exterior

The depot is a one and onc-half story red brick and grey limestone building with a rectangular form. It has a
massive and steeply-pitched hip roof with very wide overhanging eaves and two large projecting gables.

18



Form 10-500-a
(Rev. 8-86)

Wisconsin Word Processing Format (Approved 1/92)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Whitewater Passenger Depot
Section _7  Page 2 Whitewater, Walworth County, W1

Although the form and massing of the building is typical of small railroad depots of the period, its
architectural details, particularly in the decorative gables, suggest the unusual High Victorian Gothic style.

The large hip roof extends well past the depot walls, then curves downward creating large soffits that are
covered with horizontal boards that suggest horizontal wainscoting or paneling. Supporting the overhang
are very large knee-brace brackets. The support system of the brackets feature vertical, horizontal, and
diagonal boards and each bracket includes decorative bull’s eye blocks. The ends of the brackets arc
attached to the walls of the building. A large chimney rises from the roof at the south end of the building. It
is constructed of red brick and {eatures limestone trim.

Main Elevation

The main or west elevation of the building features the larger of the two projecting gables, a large set of
entry doors, and symmetrical fenestration. The main entrance on this elevation sits at the center and consists
of double eight-panel heavy wood doors that arc permanently closed and no longer have their hardware.
Above the doors is a large two-light transom and the entrance is decorated with a very heavy rusticated
limestone {rontispiece that {eatures narrow tabs and a large lintel. There is also a smooth limestone sill
under the doors. Flanking this entrance are two sets of three large openings filled with original single-light
double-hung sashes covered with mid-twentieth century aluminum storm-screen combination windows.
These window groups are also decorated with heavy rusticated limestone surrounds with narrow tabs.
Similar limestone is used at the comers of the building to make quoins, also with narrow tabs. The red brick
wall is laid in a common stretcher bond and sits on a tall and heavy rusticated limestone foundation.

The projecting gable of the main elevation is larger than a similar gable on the cast elevation, but is more
decorative. It has a very steep gable roof, a red brick wall, and elaborate limestone trim. At the gable peak
there is a triangular limestone panel outlined in rusticated limestone trim. Topping the panel is a triangular
motif of small raised rusticated limestone blocks. Under this decoration is a rectangular rusticated limestone
block that has been carved with smooth inset trefoils. The block is flanked with rounded triangular
rusticated limestones.

Under the triangular stone panel is the main wall of the gable, which is red brick and heavily accented with
rusticated limestone belt courses. Four rounded brick pilasters rise from the lowest limestone course and end
at the top with stepped triangular stone caps. Two shallow pilasters rise {rom the center of the gable wall
and definc the openings. The limestone belt courses run through the two sets of inner pilasters and end at the
stone caps of the outer pilasters. In between the two sets of inner pilasters are openings. Atthetopisa
singie horizontally-placed rectangular opening flanked by two large rusticated limestoncs. Below this level
is a similar horizontal opening flanked by taller vertical openings. At the lowest level of the gable are three
larger vertical openings. All of the openings are filled with single lights. This gable, plus the one on the east
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elevation, were meant to add space and light to an attic half-story that was designed into the depot, but never
used by the railroad.

East Elevation

Like the west ¢levation, this elevation, which faces the tracks, has red brick walls, a central entrance, large
windows, and a decorative gable projecting from the roof. But there are some differences between the two
elevations. The central entrance featurcs that same double wood paneled doors with transom and heavy
limestone surround and lintel. But above the lintel is a very small limestone plaque of hands grasping,
symbolic of the community welcoming travelers. The flanking windows are slightly different, as well. To
the north of the entrance, the set of three windows are identical to those of the matn elevation. To the south
of the entrance, there is one similar window, but instead of two more windows, there is a limestone-clad bay
of three windows, also double-hung sashes with single lights. Similar corner quoins decorate this elevation.

The projecting gable on this elevation is smaller than that of the west elevation, but similarly decorated. It
has an identical triangular stone panel with the blocks and trefoil as the west elevation gable and two of the
rounded pilasters with stepped caps flanking the gable ends. A single limestone belt course and an
additionat set of flat pilasters define the two sets of openings. Above the belt coursc, in the center, 1s a very
narrow horizontal opening {lanked by large rusticated limestone blocks. Below the belt course is a larger
horizontal opening flanked by narrow vertical openings. All the openings are filled with single lights. This
gable has the same limestone trim at the edges and below the openings and pilasters that is seen on the west
elevation gable,

North and South Elevations

The north elevation is decorated four openings that sits under the caves, Two of the openings are a set of
paired windows, while the other two openings are individually placed on the wall. The openings have the
same heavy rusticated limestone surrounds as the windows of the east and west clevations, but the windows
filling the openings are smaller single-light, double-hung sashes. These windows light the interior bathroom
and closet spaces.

The south elevation of the building has only one opening, a central entrance that originally was the
secondary entrance into the depot, but since 1974, at least, has been used as the main entrance. It features a
single door that is similar to the other entry doors except that two of the wood panels have been replaced
with glazing. Above the door is a wide transom and there is a tabbed stone surround that is similar to those
used around windows. The entry opening in front of the main door was slightly enclosed for the placement
of a screen/storm door that is a modern “replica” of a Victorian-era screen door.,
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Interior

Waiting Room

The interior of the building consists of two main spaces; the waiting room and the old ticket office-
gentleman’s smoking lounge that was once separated by a wall, plus a bathroom and a closet. The entire
interior has very high ceilings that are coved throughout except for the bathroom and closet. All of the wall
surfaces are covered with wide board wainscoting or what some refer to as “boxcar” paneling. Even the
ceiling surfaces are covercd with this material. A chair rail runs throughout the interior along with a picture
rail. These moldings held keep the paneling in place, but there are also vertical boards that sit around
openings that serve a similar purpose. The cove between the walls and ceiling consists of a very wide
molding. There are also honizontal and vertical boards laid in a pattern of two large squares bolding the
ceiling panels in place. Hanging from the ceiling are two “schoolhouse” type globe light fixtures that are
reportedly not original to the building,

In the waiting room, the floor is covered with narrow oak boards that in some arcas appear to be patched. Tt
is likely that these were heating and ventilation grates for the original furnace system in the building. These
grates were probably removed when a new system was added in the1970s that replaced them with baseboard
units. The baseboards, themselves, are wide moldings. There are three interior doors in the waiting room.
Two are in the north end and lead into the bathroom and closet. They are plain eight-panel wood doors with
period hardware. A similar door leads covers an opening from the waiting room into what was the original
gentlemen’s smoking room.

At the south end of the waiting room is a fire place. This unusual feature is seen on the original plans, so
was built to the original architect’s design. The fireplace has a small {ire box surrounded by glazed tile ina
red brick pattern that mimics the exterior walls. There was a tiled hearth, but it is not cxtant and the hearth
consists of a stone slab, The maniel and surround is light-finished cak with a classical motif of turned
columns, an entablature with cornice and dentil row, and a paneled over mantel with a denticulated cornice.
Above the mantel is a backing of red bricks that are similar to those used in the building walls.

To the east of the fireplace is the ticket window. According to the plans, this window had additional
decoration, including an oak counter and elaborate brackets, but is currently just framed with plain boards
and it has a mid-twentieth century style wood counter. The windows in the waiting area are all original with
their original hardware and have almost all of their original glazing.

The original bathroom at the north end of the waiting room was built for women’s exclusive use. It had the

same wood floor as the waiting room but was, in the late twentieth century, covered with ceramic tile
flooring. Modern vinyl type panels were added to the lower walls of this room and a modem toilet instatled.
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In the early 2000°s, a new vanity and sink was added to this room. The closet has no features except some
period coat hooks and added shelves,

Ticket Office/Gentleman's Smoking Room

The old gentleman’s smoking room was originally separated from the ticket office by a full wall, but the
wall was removed probably during the museum conversion in 1974, making this area larger. The wall and
cciling surfaces of this area of the building are identical to those of the waiting room, as is the wood trim and
window details. In this area, though, the original wood floor was covered with ¢.1974 “indoor-outdoor”
carpeting that was glued to the wood surface. The gentleman’s smoking room has no unusual features, but
the ticket office has a counter set into the bay window. According to the original plans, this counter was also
of oak, but 1t was altered with a mid-twenticth century “Formica™ stylc counter and wood cabinets were built
underneath. Along the south wall of the tickit office, a large bookshelf was built into the space. It has been
partially removed, but will be returned to this space during the upcoming renovation of the building,

Basemen!

The basement of the building runs along the entire building and can be accessed only through an ¢xterior

- staircase covered with a large, heavy, metal door located in the concrete pad along the west elevation. It has
a concrete floor and the fumace room is framed out from the rest of the space. Running through the
basement is an unusual stone-constricted storm sewer that is about three feet high and about as wide.
Originally, this storm sewer was operational, but in the late lwentieth century, the openings were closed and
the sewer diverted away from the building. However, the structure is still extant. This structure divides the
basement into two large space. The basement walls are exposed limestone and the space is currently vacant.

Renovation .

In 2009, the City of Whitewater was awarded a transportation enhancement grant to rehabilitate the depot
for the Whitewater Historical Society’s local history museum. Most of this rehabilitation involves exterior
cleaning and tuck-pointing, interior moisture control, making the basement usable dry storage space, and
refinishing interior extant surfaces. No major decorative elements will be lost in this project. Specifically,
the windows will be rehabilitated and not replaced, as will be all doors. The double wood doors on the east
and west clevations will be made operational and the main entrance will be through the doors on the west
glevation. The door on the south elevation will remain a handicapped accessible and staff entrance only.

The basement storm sewer will be removed and the basement will be renovated into a storage and work
space, but no new partitioning or dry wall will be added. On the main floor, the wall between the ticket
office and smoking room will be rebuilt as per original plans for an office and research room and a new
temporary gallery space. The waiting room will house the permanent local history gallery.
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Because of the building’s use as a public space, a handicapped accessible bathroom will be built in the closet
area and the existing back wall will be moved slightly to accommeodate building codes for this use. The
existing bathroom will be removed and in its place will be a new interior staircase to the basement storage
and work room. The architect’s plans have made these alterations in keeping with the historic character of
the building and retaining as much historic fabric as possible.

Also planned in the renovation will be the return of the decorative elements of the ticket window based on
the original plans and rehabilitation of fireplace elements. On the exterior, there will be no changes, but the
original metal cresting will be replicated and retumed to the roof peak.

___End of Description of Physical Appearance
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SIGNIFICANCE!

The Whitewater Passenger Depot is being nominated to the National Register of Historic Places under
both criterion A and C. It is being nominated under criterion A for its association with the growth and
development of rail transportation in Whitewater. Whitewater was one of the first stops on the first
railroad that was built in Wisconsin. The railroad link in Whitewater helped made the community an
important industrial town in the nineteenth century. The original depot was a nondescript frame
building that became the freight depot in 1890 upon the completion of this building. The freight
house, as the old depot became known, was demolished in the 1990s, making this building the only
cxtant resource related to the most important method of transportation of the nineteenth and carly
twentieth century, the railroad.

The building is also being nominated under criterion C for its local architcctural significance as a fine
and unusual example of a typical small-town depot enhanced by High Victorian Gothic style details
and distinguished by its high integrity. It was the work of master architect J. T. W, Jennings, who had
an important architectural career in Wisconsin, beginning with his work for the Chicago, Milwaukee,
and St. Paul Railroad (Milwaukee Road). The distinctive appearance of this depot can be attributed to
the talent of Jennings, who went on to design important buildings in Madison, Wisconsin.

AREA OF SIGNIFICANCE: TRANSPORTATION
Historical Background

The Whitewater Depot represents the growth and development of the railroad in the community an on-
going historic event that was significant to the growth and development of the community as a whole.
[t was an early stop on the first ratlroad built in the state and when the depot was built, it was a stop on
Wisconsin’s most important rail line at the height of passenger rail transportation.

According to Wisconsin’s Cultural Resource Management Plan, rail construction in the state began in the
1850s with several small companies laying track. By 1865, most of these small lines were consolidated
under three large railroad companies and by 1868, there were over 1,000 miles of track in the state, almost

! The date of construction for this building was verified by articles in the Whitewater Register, January of 1890 through
April of 1891. The period of significance was determined by the date of construction of the building and the end date of
passenger service in Whitewater in 1951. '
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all in southern Wisconsin. Consolidation of rail lines continued in the later nineteenth century and by 1960
the Chicago, Milwaukee & St. Paul (Milwaukee Road), the Chicago & Northwestern, and the Minneapolis,
St. Paul, & Sault Ste. Marie (Soo Line) railroads dominated the state. These large lines built extensively as
railroad transportation reached its peak. By 1900 there were 6,500 railroad miles constructed in Wisconsin.
Construction peaked in 1916 and railroad transportation began a decline after World War 1. After World
War II, highways took over as the most important American transportation system and railroad companies
shrank their opcrations considerably, along with many miles of track.”

Whitewater’s railroad link was the result of the earliest rail line construction in the state, After the
formal establishment of the Wisconsin territory in 1836, most people expected the territorial legislature
to immediately give a charter for a rail line and several businessmen and speculators developed plans
for railroad companies. One of the most important efforts was in Milwaukee. Byron Kilbourn (the
founder of Milwaukee) and others were advocating a Milwaukee to the Mississippi River line running
through the lead region.’

No rail lines were given charters until the late 1840s due to economic problems and political in-
fighting between rail line promoters and companies building stage lines and plank roads. In 1847,
Kilbourn and his supporters finally received a charter for a rail line from Milwaukee to Waukesha.
By the time of statehood in 1848, there were nine rail charters approved and Kilbourn had received
another charter to extend his line to the Mississippi. But money was still tight and it would be a
struggle to raisc the capital needed to actually build track.”

Kilbourn’s railroad was initially incorporated as the Milwackee, Waukesha, and Mississippi River Rail
Road Company, but is always referred to as the Milwaukee and Mississippi Railroad. Its initial
funding came almost entirely from the City of Milwaukee, which saw the link between Milwaukee and
the Mississippi River as a boon to its economic success. The constructton of the rail line was divided
into five sections; Milwaukee to Waukesha, Waukesha to the Rock River, the Rock River to Madison,
Madison to Mineral Point, and Mineral Point to the Mississippi River in Grant County. The company
estimated that they could complete the first section by June of 1850.°

Construction on the rail line began in October of 1849, Just the fact that this line had reached the point
of construction was a major success since other roads given charters had not been able to even get

? Barbara Wyatt, ed., Cultural Resource Management in Wisconsin (Madison: State Historical Society of Wisconsin,
1986), Transportatlon 6-1—6-2,

¥ Axel S. Lorenzsonn, Steam and Cinders The Advent of Railroads in Wisconsin 1831-1861 (Madison: Wisconsin
Historical Society Press, 2009), 32-49.

* Ihid., 56-59.

* Ibid., T0-71.
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enough funding to begin planning. It was probably due to the political savvy of Byron Kilbourn and
his Milwaukee connections that his linc was the first to get to this stage. And, it cannot be ecmphasized
enough the challenges of building this line at this time. The route encountered much swamp land and
the line literally had to be “carved” out of the wilderness that was Wisconsin, Meanwhile, Kilbourn
and others were also engaged in selling stock for moving the rail line west from Waukesha, a task that
was easler after construction on the line actually started.”

On September 25, 1850, the Milwaukee and Mississippi’s Engine No. 1 was set on the first half mile
of track laid in Milwaukee and Byron Kilbourn drove the locomotive to the end of this track and back.
Five miles of track (Milwaukee to Wauwatosa) were completed by November of 1850 and when the
track was completed 10 miles to Elm Grove by December 17, 1850, the charter allowed for operations
to begin and for the rail line to actually begin charging for freight and fares. The linc was built through
modern-day Brook{ield and by February of 1851, Waukesha was in sight. Waiting for the rails in
Waukesha were two large stone buildings, a two-story depot and a large car barn where cars were to be
built. When the tracks reached Waukesha, four passenger cars were waiting.’

Wisconsin’s first railroad reached Waukesha in February of 1851 and on March 4, 1851, regularly
scheduled daily passenger trains began running between Milwaukee and Waukesha. In April a freight
train was added to this schedule. Although still financially precarious, the Milwaukee and Mississippi
Railroad started to plan for westward expansion. By July 1851, the rail line extended seven miles
southwest out of Waukesha to modern-day Genesee Depot. A rift between principles in the company
threatened the rail line and affected contracts for further construction. Ironically, Byron Kilbourn,
whose persistence in getting the company off the ground resulted in Wisconsin’s first rail line, was
now seen as overextending his influence in the company and even selling illegal stock. In January of
1852, the board of directors removed him as president of the company. Kilbourn tried to take over the
board by manipulating stockholders, but ultimately failed. He had overreached and despite being
Wisconsin’s most important railroad pioneer, Kilbourn was now out of the company.®

The new president of the Milwaukee and Mississippi Railroad, John Catlin, soon had the railroad’s
financial affairs in order and the line was extended to Eagle by the end of January of 1852. The
professionalization of the company continued with the employment of a certified civil engineer,
Edward H. Brodhead, whose task it was to supervise the continuation of the line to Madison. During
the summer of 1852, the rail line was approaching Whitewater. The link to Palmyra from Fagle came
in August, then the line reached Whitewater in September of 1852, A great celebration was held in

¢ Ibid., 81-89.
7 1hid., 102-109.
8 Ibid., 110-127.
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Whitewater with about 300 people coming from Milwaukce to join a crowd that the Milwaukee
Sentinel estimated was between two and three thousand people.”

Why did the line come to Whitewater is a valid question as it was certainly not on a direct route west.
General literature does not explain how the route was devised, but it is probable that this first line
wanted to serve the heavily wheat-producing areas of Walworth and Rock Counties without straying
too far from the westerly course to Madison and the Mississippi. Did the community lure the road?
According to the Early Annals of Whitewater, meetings were held in the fall of 1849 regarding the
purchase of stock in this line by local people. The Early Annals state that Leander Birge, Rufus
Cheney, and Prosper Cravath were appointed as a committee to meet with the railroad board of
directors to “have the road pass through Whitewater.” It was statcd that the farmers of the area wanted
an alternative to the “slow, plodding . . . miserable. . . almost impassable roads” between Whitewater
and Milwaukee.'®

The Early Annals reported that in the spring of 1850, the directors of the Milwaukee and Mississippi
Railroad began soliciting area farmers to purchase stock in the line. When the line came to
Whitewater, the Annals state, the commumnity was all “astir; produce and provisions of all kinds and in
large quantities were daily coming in. . . and the town began to put on quite a business-like air. All
were excited, even the old fogies . . . were forced to acknowledge that . . . there might be something
new under the sun. . . . all rejoiced at the good time already come, and looked forward to the better
times coming.” So, it may have been that due to the concerted interest of Whitewater’s citizens and
the successful selling of stock (some of the local farmers even mortgaged their farms to buy stock) that
the company, in part, decided to come through Whitewater.'!

Freight records show the importance of the railroad for the Whitewater economy. Out of Milwaukee
the freight trains carried retail goods, lumber, wood products, coal, stoves, brick, and livestock. Going
east, the trains carried wheat to the Milwaukee markets as well as other agricultural products like corn,
oats, barley, potatoes, hogs, wool, lead, and shot. Farmers had another profitable venture with the
railroad, selling wood for the engines. Whitewater grew significantly during this period, fueled by
trade no doubt fostered by the railroad.

The Milwaukee and Mississippi Railroad continued to move west, then north to Madison. The line
was built out of Whitewater to Milton, then the company was paid to build a spur line to Janesville.
The line then moved north, reaching Stoughton in January of 1854, and by May of 1854, the tracks

9 ;
Ibid., 127-133,
' Prosper Cravath and Spencer Steele, Early Annals of Whitewater (Whitewater: Whitewater Federation of Women'’s
Clubs, 1906), 84-85.
' Ibid., 86, 93.
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came to Madison, itself. Now people could travel, albeit not exactly due west, between Milwaukee
and Madison entirely by rail. For a brief moment, the Milwaukee and Mississippi Railroad could boast
of being the only rail line in Wisconsin, but this was short-lived. By the end of 1854, 152 miles of
track existed in Wisconsin. Most of it was owned by the Milwaukee and Mississippi Railroad, but
there were lines completed between Fond du Lac and just north of Waupun, between Beloit and
Footville, between Brookfield and Watertown, and between Racine and Walworth county. 12

As the Milwaukee and Mississippi Railroad continued to drive to the Mississippi River, other roads
were making plans to do the same. But, the Milwaukee and Mississippi was {irst, completing its road
at Prairie du Chien in April of 1857, The pre-Civil War period was a volatile one for the small railroad
companies in Wisconsin, and small companies started merging while even more new companies were
formed. Despite the sometimes financial uncertainty of the railroad industry at the time, the railroad
was now a permancnt fixture in the southern third of the state and no matter how the companies
changed over the next few decades, railroads were no longer a fad, but an integral part of the state’s
transportation system. The economic depression that began in 1857 would make a significant impact
on the railroad industry and change the major players, bul the railroad tracks were here to stay."

The Development of the Milwaukee Road

The financial crisis of the late 1850s speeded up railroad consolidation as smaller companies went
under or were purchased by better financed companies. One of the major players to come out of this
era was the Chicago and North Western Railroad, which built a continuous 198-mile line between
Chicago and Oshkosh. This line would become the main rail line in eastern Wisconsin well into the
twentieth century. The crists in the late 1850s would also see the corporate demise of the Milwaukee
and Mississippi Railroad, but soon would come the rise of what could be called its successor, the
Chicago, Milwaukee and St. Paul Railroad, or the Milwaukee Road. 14

In late 1860 the Milwaukee and Mississippi was bankrupt and its assets were sold in January of 1861
to the newly-formed Milwaukee & Prairie du Chien Railway Company. Then, under the leadership of
Alexander Mitchell of Milwaukec, in 1863, the Milwaukee & St. Paul Railway Company was
organized and began buying up smaller railroads, including, in 1867, the Milwaukee and Prairie du
Chien. By 1869, the Milwaukee & St. Paul had consolidated enough lines to contrel every through
route in Wisconsin from Lake Michigan to the Mississippi and was a major competitor with the

2 L orenzsonn, 179-189.
B 1bid., 236-247.
4 Ibid, 282-287.
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Chicago and North Western for rail dominance in the state.'®

After the Civil War the Milwaukee and St, Paul line began looking to grow beyond Wisconsin and the
1870s saw rapid growth in that development. In 1872, the company acquired the St. Paul & Chicago
Railway Company with its routes along the Mississippi River. In 1873, the company opened its own
route to Chicago, prompting the name change to the Chicago, Milwaukee & St, Paul Railway
Company (CM&SP), a name that would stick until 1928. By the end of 1874, the CM&SP controlled
almost 1,400 miles of track and was looking to expand into the newly opened settlement areas of lowa
and the Dakotas. The company cither built track or acquired smaller companies to make this happen
and in the mid-1870s, they built two bridges over the Mississippi River (to take the place of ferries);
one at Prairie du Chien and one at Marquette, lowa. In 1876, they built a bridge to connect La Crosse
and Minnesota.'®

By 1880, the CM&SP controlled almost 4,000 track miles, up from the 1,400 controlled in 1874. Then
in 1884 the line reached Fargo, North Dakota, and in 1887, it reached Kansas City. In 1890, the line
made an agreement with the Union Pacific Railroad to extend its service into Omaha, Nebraska. At
the same time, the emphasis of the company shifted from its historic origination point of Milwaukee to
Chicago, which was rapidly becoming or had already become the lcading mid-western rail center. At
the end of 1887, the CM&SP controlled 5,669 miles of track, had 740 locomeotives, 375 passenger cars,
14,312 box cars, and 7,201 freight cars under its control and was becoming a national railroad.!

In 1890, when Whitewater received its new passenger depot, the CM&SP was carrying 9.2 miilion
tons of freight and 7.5 million passengers per year. Eventually, the CM&SP would build its own line
to the Pacific Northwest. In May of 1911, the company began offering passenger service between
Chicago and Seattle and by 1913, the CM&SP had almost 10,000 miles of track '

In 1925, the company entered the first of three bankruptcies of the twenticth century. But, this first
one did not destroy the company, rather it resuited in a reorganization and a new name, the Chicago,
Milwaukee, St. Paul, and Pacific Raliroad Company, made official in 1928. It was at this time that the
moniker “The Milwaukee Road” became the popular and preferred company name. The name came
from the common use of the first name of a railroad company to refer to a particular line. Prior to
1928, the railroad’s common name, whether it was the old Milwaukee and Mississippi or the
Milwaukece and St. Paul, always began with “Milwaukee,” i.e., the Milwaukee line or Milwaukee

¥ Tom Murray, The Milwaukee Road (St. Paul: MBI Publishing Company, 2005), 20-22.
® Ibid,, 22.

"7 Ibid., 22-25.

'8 bid., 27-45.
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railroad, The reorganized company, with its longer name, took advantage of this common usage by
making “The Milwaukee Road” its advertising and corporate identity. This identity would remain
until the demise of the line in 1985."”

The bankruptcy and reorganization of the Milwaukee Road gave it little financial flexibility, then came
the Great Depression of the 1930s. Added to the poor economy was the multi-year drought conditions
in the wheat-growing arcas of Minnesota, the Dakotas and Montana, lowering agricultural revenue for
the line. Passenger revenue declined by half, but the company still had to maintain most of its
passenger schedules. In the meantime, automobiles and trucks were taking away from what little
business was available. The resull was a second bankruptey in 1935, and another reorganization.”®
After World War II, short-line passenger service died quickly as personal automobile travel became
the preferred way to make trips to nearby towns. In Whitewater, one of the first stops on the first
railroad in Wisconsin, passenger service ended in 1951, Gradually, in the later twentieth century, the
Milwaukee Road began to phase out some of its operations in the west and northwest part of the Us
In the 1980s, the Milwaukee Road was on the market and in 1984, the Soo Line, with a majority of
stock owned by the Canadian Pacific Railway, offered a bid that was accepted. At that point, the
corporate entity of the Milwaukee Road died, as, ironically, did the Sco Line, which by 2005 was
under the corporate logo of the Canadian Pacific Railway.*

In Whitewater, the legacy of the Milwaukee Road was long gone by 1985. In the late 1950s and early
1960s, the Whitewater Passenger Depot was mostly being used as a feed store, although telegraph
service continued during this time from the old ticket office. Then, after much lobbying, the city of
Whitewater acquired the Whitewater depot in 1973 in order to lease it to the Whitewater Historical
Society for a museum that opened in July of 1974, The old freight house remained until the 1990s,
when it was demolished for improved parking facilities.

As can be seen in the above discussion, the Milwaukee and Mississippi Railroad and the resulting Chicago,
Milwaukee and St. Paul Railroad (The Milwaukee Road) were significant transportation providers in
Wisconsin during the nineteenth and twentieth centuries. The stop at Whitewater, beginning in 1852, saw
almost the entire growth and development of the historic first rail line in the state and the development of
one of the most important, if not the most important, rail line in Wisconsin, the Milwaukee Road. The

¥ tbid., 24, 50-53.
* 1bid., 53-56.

' Ibid., 128-143.
2 Ibid., 144-148.
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Whitewater Passenger Depot was built at what might arguably be considered the height of rail transportation -
in the state. It was a showplace for both the Milwaukee Road and the local community.

Therefore, the Whitewater Passenger Depot is historically sigmficant at the local level because it was and
still is the most important symbol of rail transportation in the city. Rail transportation was the most
significant form of transportation in the nineteenth and early twenticth centuries and depots were the center
of this activity. The old freight house was demolished in the 1990s, leaving the passenger depot the only
link to this important activity in the community.

AREA OF SIGNIFICANCE: ARCHITECTURE

The Whitewater Passenger Depot is architecturally significant at the local level because it is a fine and
unusual example of a small town railroad depot with High Victorian Gothic style details and because it was
the work of a mastcr architect, J. T. W. Jennings. According to Wisconsin’s Cultural Resources
Management Plan, the High Victorian Gothic style exhibits heavier detailing and massing than the earlier
Gothic Revival style. High Victorian Gothic style elements include pointed arched openings, foliated and
geometric patterns decorating wall surfaces, and polychromatic effects using materials of differing colors
and textur%s. Examples of the style are relatively rare in Wisconsin and largely seen in public or institutional
buildings.

The Whitewater Passenger Depot has a typical small depot plan; that is, it has a rectangular form with large
hip roof and wide overhanging eaves. But, its stylistic details make it stand out from other small depots.
First, it has the polychromatic appearance typical of the High Victorian Gothic style. The smooth,
vermillion red bricks are heavily accented with the rusticated grey limestone that forms the foundation, the
trim around the openings, and the decoration in the two Gothic-inspired gables. These details provide the
materials of differing colors and textures that is distinctive of the style. The gables, with their pilasters that
suggest pinnacles and panels that have the small squares and trefoil decoration, also strongly suggest a
Gothic motif.

While the exterior of the depot is highly decorative, the interior of the building is also distinctive. The use of
the wide wainscoting or “box car” paneling is unusual, especially since it is also used for the ceiling
throughout the building. The unusual fireplace is also a distinctive {eature, This classically-appointed detail
contracts somewhat with the simplicity of the wall and ceiling materials, but gives the depot’s waiting room

2 Barbara Wyatt, Cultural Resource Management in Wisconsin {Madison: State Historical Society of Wisconsin, 1986}
Architecture, 2-10.
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the ambience of a typical Victorian-era parlor. Most visitors to the depot question whether the fireplace was
original to the building, but it appears in the plans executed by Jennings.

In a comparison with small town depots in the area, it is clear that this depot stands out for its style
characteristics. That is probably becausc it was the work of master architect J. T. W. Jennings. During
Jennings’ early career, he worked for the Milwaukee Road, but only for a few years. In 1899, Jennings
would become the Supervising Architect for the University of Wisconsin, where he designed several of that
campus’ important buildings. In 1905 he began working as a successful architect in private practice in
Madison before leaving the state to continue his career elsewhere. It was Jennings’ brief tenure with the
railroad and his obvious talent that resulted in Whitewater’s unusual and decorative depot design.

A rcview of the original plans provided by the Milwaukce Road Historical Society reveal that Jennings’
design, with large hip roof, supporting brackets and masonry dormers, and its unusual interior features was
implemented closely to his original intent, Jennings hand written notes appear on the drawings indicating
that he personally authorized design changes.

Integrity

One of the most important details that add to the architectural significance of this building is its integrity.
Almost all of the building’s historic details are intact. All of the historic features of the building’s exterior
are extant with the exception of the metal roof cresting and the addition of the aluminum storm windows,
The interior, despite decades of use as a museum, has also had few changes. Only the wall between the
ticket office and the smoking room was removed along with some of the trim of the original ticket window.
The rest of the depot’s original plan is intact. The historic materials of the interior are also almost all intact,
including the hardware on doors, trim around openings, wood floors, and the extensive original wood
paneling.

The upcoming rehabilitation of the building will not significantly change this high integrity. Almost all of
the historic features of the building will remain intact and the wall between the ticket office and smoking
room will be restored using replicated materials. The metal cresting on the exterior will be replicated along
with the decorative details of the original ticket window. Only the bathroom and closet area will be slightly
altered with a mandatory handicapped-accessible new bathroom in the closet space and a staircase to the
basement in the old bathroom space that is necessary for the improved operation of the Whitewater
Historical Society’s local history museum. These alterations will be done with a minimal amount of change
to the building’s layout and historic materials.

Conclusion
The Whitewater Passenger Depot is one of the most important historic buildings in the city. It was the
center of modern transportation in the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries and it has been an important
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location for the interpretation of local history by the Whitewater Historical Society for almost 40 years. It is
a symbol used today on the City of Whitewater’s official logo. It is locally historically significant for its
association with the important railroad industry. It is the most important building ever constructed for the
railroad in Whitewater and represents the growth and development of this historically important method of
transportation.

The building is also an architectural “gem.” Its small form contains big design elements of the unusual High
Victorian Gothic style, a style not frequently used for small-town depots. It was the work of one of
Wisconsin’s master architects, J. T. W. Jennings, who illustrated his talent with this early design in his
career. The building’s high level of integrity adds to its significance. The building is truly distinctive for its
style, and construction methods and materials, For this reason, it is architecturally significant and worthy of
listing in the National Register.
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BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The boundary of this property has a rectangular shape and consists of the following description.
Commencing at the intersection of the southerly line of Whitewater Street and the westerly line of
Fremont Street (Formerly Depot Street) said point being the northerly corner of Block A Depot Block
of Tripp’s Add. To the Village (now City) of Whitcwater, Wisconsin; also the place of Beginning of
the lands herealter described to-wit; thence 852%42°40”W 109,97 feet; thence N38*45°40”W 104.99
teet to the southerly line of Whitewater Street; thence N52*42°E along said Street [ine 110.00 feet to
the Place of Beginning.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The boundary of the property encompasses the historic site of the building ever since it was
constructed in 1890. The specific modern boundary, in the form of a certified survey, was drawn when
the property was sold to the City of Whitewater from the Milwaukee Road railroad company. It was
drawn by Joseph M. Biagi, surveyor from Elkhorn, Wisconsin and submitted to the Register of Deeds
on March 13, 1973.
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Name of Property: Whitewater Passenger Depot
City: Whitewater
County: Walworth
State: WI
Name of Photographer: Carol Cartwright
Date of Photographs: May 23, 2012
Location of Original Digital
Files: W7646 Hackett Rd., Whitcwater, W1 53190

Photo #1 (WI_WL_Whitewater Passenger Depot_0001)
East elevation, camera facing southwest.

Photo #1 (WI_ WL Whitewater Passenger Depot 0002)
East elevation, closc-up of projecting gable.

Photo #1 (WI_WL_Whitewater Passenger Depot_0003)
Site view, camera facing north

Photo #1 (WI_WL_Whitewater Passenger Depot 0004)
East and south elevations, camera facing northwest
Photo #1 (WI_WL_ Whitewater Passenger Depot 0005)
Interior, wailing room

Photo #1 (W1 WL_Whitewater Passenger Depot_0006)
Interior, waiting room

Photo #1 (W1 WL Whitewater Passenger Depot (007)
Interior, close-up of fireplace

Photo #1 (WI_WL_Whitewater Passenger Depot_(0008)
Interior, smoking room

Photo #1 (WI_WL_Whitewatcr Passenger Depot_0009)
Interior, ticket office

Photo #1 (WI_WL_Whitewater Passenger Depot 0010)
Waest elevation, camera facing southeast

Photo #1 (WI_WL_Whitewater Passenger Depot 0011}
North elevation, camera facing southwest
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June 19, 2012

Kevin Brunner

City Manager

City Administration Building
312 W Whitewater St
Whitewater WI 53190

Dear Mr. Brunner:

This letter is to notify you that an adequately documented nomination for the following
property located in the City of Whitewater has been rcceived by our office for nomination
to the National Register of Historic Places:

Whitewater Passenger Depot

In accordance with “Procedures for the Certification of Local Government in Wisconsin”
a copy of this nomination has been transmitted to the Whitewater Landmarks
Commission for review and comment regarding the eligibility of this property for listing
in the National Register of Historic Places,

The report of the Commission will be forwarded to you for your recommendation
regarding the eligibility of this property to the National Register. The Commission’s
report and your recommendations should be transmiited to our office within 60 days of
the Commission’s receipt of the nomination, in accordance with the Certification of
Agreement between the City of Whitewater and the Wisconsin State Historic
Preservation Review Board.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me at (608) 264-6501. 1
may also be reached by email at daina.penkiunas(@wisconsinhistory.org.

Sincerely,

o

Daina Penkiunas
National Register Coordinator

¢cc; Whitewater Landmarks Commission

Colecting, Preserving and Sharing Storics Since 1846

816 State Street Mudlilsorl, Wisconsin h3706

wisconsinhistory.org





